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THE KEYS ACADEMY TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUS T 2021

The trustees‘present their annual rebort together with the accounts and auditor's repbrt of the charitable
company for the year 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021. The annual report serves the purposes of both a
trustees' report, and a directors' report under company law.

The trust incorporated on 14 June 2017 and its first academy school, Earley St Peter’'s C of E Primary School
(ESP) converted to academy status on 1 July 2017. Since incorporation The Keys Academy Trust has been
given academy sponsor status. On 1 September 2017, The Coombes C of E Primary School (The Coombes)
joined the trust as a sponsor academy. As at 31 August 2021, there are nine primary schools operating within the
trust, with a combined capacity of 2,102 pupils and 1,892 pupils on roll as at October 2020 Census. The schools
serve catchments within the Wokingham area for children aged 3 to 11.

Structure, governance and management

Constitution

The academy trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company's
memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the academy trust.

The charitable company operates as The Keys Academy Trust. It is also known as The Keys or TKAT.

The trustees of The Keys Academy Trust are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of
company law. Details of the trustees who served during the year, and to the date these accounts are approved,
are included in the Reference and Administrative Details on page 1.

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be

a member.

~ Trustees' indemnities ' . '
There were no provisions required for third party indemnity. In accordance with normal commercial practice, the
academy trust purchased insurance to protect trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts,
errors or omissions occurring whilst on trust business.

Method of recruitment and appointment or election of trustees
The Articles of Association provide for the appointment by members of a minimum of 3 Trustees.

It is the policy of the Board of Trustees that as long as the CEO agrees, the members can appoint by ordinary
resolution the CEO as a Trustee. The Articles set out that parent trustees are not required if parent
representation is in place within the LGBs, which itis. Parent governors, on LGBs, are nominated from within the
parent community.

Policies and procedures adopted for the induction and training of trustees
New trustées are provided with an induction pack containing key documentation and will meet with the Chair of -
the Board. The induction process will then continue with meetings with the CEO, other members of the
Leadership Team as appropriate and visits to the schools in the Trust. Trustees are encouraged to attend.
training and networking events as appropriate to their area of expertise, and are welcome to all commlttee
meetmgs as observers to gam a deeper understandlng of the Trust. : . -
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Orgamsatlonal structure
The organisation structure of the Trust is ||Iustrated below:
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A Scheme of Delegation is in place which sets out the responsibilities of the Board and the Loca!l Governing
Body.

The governors fulfil a largely strategic role and adopt a School Development Plan. They monitor standards of
performance within their school.

The trustees retain responsibility for the appointment of all Headteachers, for approval of the appointment of the
Chair of Finance of the Local Governing Body, for trust wide policies and for any changes to Admissions
arrangements for any schools within the Trust.

The CEO is the Accounting Officer of the Trust. The Scheme of Delegation and the Trust’s Finance Manual set
out the authorisation levels for both the Trust and each school within the Trust.

Arrangements for settlng pay and remuneration of key management personnel
Pay and remuneration for the CEO and the CFO is set by the Board of Trustees. The CEO determines pay and
remuneration for the Executive team. All pay and remuneration is set with reference to the Trust's Pay Policy,
Teachers Pay and Conditions (where applicable) and subject to benchmarking with other Trusts, where data is
avaalable within annual accounts or recruitment matenal

Pay and remuneration for Headteachers is set with reference to Teachers Pay and Conditions and the Trusts
pay policy and is proposed through the-performance management process in which both the LGB and Executive
team participate. Pay decisions are ratified by the LGB's Pay and Personnel committee.

There is no pay and remuneration in place for trustees, other than the opportunity to claim expenses.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Trade union facility tirne

Relevant union officials

Number of employees who were relevant union officials

during the relevant period -
Full-time equivalent employeernumber _ A -

Percentage of time spent on facility time

Percentage of time Number of employees
0% -
1%-50% , . -
51%-99% -
100% : -

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time

Total cost of facility time -
Total pay bill £6,187,761
Percentage of the total pay bill spent on facilty time -

Paid trade union activities ,
Time spent on paid trade union activities as a percentage of
total paid facility time hours -

-Engagement with employees
The trust engages with its staff in a manner of ways All members of staff receive an End of Term Newsletter

which provides employees with information on matters of concern to them. There are weekly Leadership
meetings with the CEO, Director of Learning and Headteachers and termly briefings with the Headteachers and
. Chair of Governors. Arrangements are maintained and developed to provide information and to consuit with
employees on matters affectlng them.

The trust is committed to providing equal opportunities throughout employment and achieving a diverse
workforce that reflects its community. The trust recognises the contribution of every employee and values
individual differences and is committed to eliminating discrimination in the workplace.

The trust will ensure that all job applicants, employees (part-time or full-time), contractors and temporary workers
are treated equally and is willing to make reasonable adjustments where appropriate for disabled applicants and
employees. The trust seeks to provide an environment that fosters a climate of respect for all employees,
contractors and temporary workers where they are free from harassment, bullying, intimidation and victimisation.

Related parties and other connected charities and organisations

The members' of the trust are the Oxford Diocesan Board of Education (acting corporately), two persons
appointed by the Oxford Diocesan Board of Education, the Reverend Pullin (resigned 12 March 2021), Reverend
Liz Jackson (appointed 13 March 2021) and the Chair of Trustees. The Academy Trust purchases certain
services from the Oxford Diocesan Board of Educatlon and the details of these transactions are dlsclosed in note
28to the ﬁnancnal statements.

There are no close family members worklng in the Trust. For further details of related parties and transactions o

dunng the year, see notes 11 and 23 to the financial statements

The Keys Academy Trust has no relationships with any other charmes/companles/organlsatlons with which it
cooperates in the pursuit of charitable activities.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Objectives and activities

Objects and aims
The Company'’s object is specifically restricted to the following:

To advance for the public benefit education in the United Kingdom, in particular but without prejudice to the
generality of the foregoing by establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing and developmg Academies whlch
shall offer a broad and balanced curriculum and which shallinclude:

» Church of England schools designated as such which shall be conducted in accordance with the
principles, practices and tenets of the Church of England both generally and in particular in relation to
arranging for religious education and daily acts of worship, and having regard to any advice issued by
the Diocesan Board of Education: and .

» other Academies whether with or without a designated religious character but in relation to each of the
Academies to recognise and support their individual ethos, whether or not designated Church of
England.

Objectives, strategies and activities

We are a family of distinctive schools at the heart of the diverse communities we serve. We aspire to excellent
" learning and pastoral care for pupils and staff. In line with our Christian ethos, we are committed to being open

and welcoming to all. Our family will include convertor schools, sponsor schools or those graded “Requires

Improvement” which will require a significant level of support and establishing new schools.

The Keys Academy Trust:

+ Has schools recognised for academic and pastoral excellence;
Provides a rich curriculum designed to inspire children to learn;
Delivers outstanding CPD and opportunities to grow leaders;
Welcomes new partnerships and shares best practice;

Serves local communities

Public benefit -

As set out in the objects in the Articles of Assaciation, the Trust is committed to advancing education for the
public benefit and in so doing it serves pupils, staff, parents and their local communities by providing schools
which aspire to excellent learning and pastoral care for pupils and staff. We have high expectations and, in our
schools, we seek to develop a love of learning so that our pupils will thrive intellectually, physically, socially,
emotionally, culturally and spiritually.

The Keys Academy Trust is motivated by Christian values to serve local communities but it does not impose
those values. The Admissions policies have remained unchanged. We welcome those of all faiths, and none,
and celebrate the ethnic diversity within our schools. We regularly organise, in partnership with local colleges,
adult courses for learning English as an additional language which is accessed by members of the local
community. In addition, ESP hosts Earley Music Centre on Saturdays which supports many youngsters from the
community in developing music skills through learning instruments. The swimming pool at ESP, which is run by
members of the school community, is accessed after school, at weekends and during the holidays by members.
of the local community. ESP also runs a holiday play club which is attended by pupils at ESP but also by pupils
from other local schools. The schools in the Trust host a variety of clubs including Scouts, Cubs, Dance Clubs,
and a Holiday Bible Club which are also attended by puplls from other local schools.

The trustees of The Keys Academy Trust confim that they have complied wuth thelr duty in Section 17(5) of the -
2011 Charities Act to have due regard to the guudance on public benefit publlshed by the Chanty Commission in
exercising their powers or duties.

Fundraising

During the year, pupils have been involved in fundraising activities mcludmg cake sales, sponsored events and
non-uniform days. They have donated the funds raised to local, natlonal and international chantles including
- Comic Relief, Save the Children and an orphanage in Uganda.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Strategic report -

Achievements and performance

The Trust has nine schools: Earley St Peter's Church of England Primary School (convertor school), The
Coombes Church of England Primary School (sponsor school) and St Sebastian’s Church of England Primary
School (convertor school), Sonning Church of England Primary School (convertor school), St Nicholas Church of
England Primary School, Hurst (convertor school), Crazies Hill Church of England Primary School (convertor
" school), Polehampton Church of England Infant School (convertor school), Polehampton Church of England
Junior School (convertor school) and Alder Grove Church of England Primary School (new free school).

School Improvement is driven by a tightly monitored system. There is a monitoring timetable for regular data
reports of pupil progress and attainment which are analysed through reports in Target Tracker. All schools are
- required to use Target Tracker in the Trust. This is followed by pupil progress meetings and a data commentary is
reported to governors. This data is then triangulated through regular learning walks and scrutinies of pupil work
and planning. The data reviewed by the local governing body is then reported to the Trustees’ Curriculum and
Church Ethos Committee. Accountability for progress, attainment and overall school performance is overseen by
this Committee.

Headline Data 2019

Key Stage 2
% of pupils working at the Expected Standard + (inc at Greater Depth)
Earley St|Coombes |St Crazies Sonning |[St Nicholas|National
. Peter’s . Sebastian’s |Hill .
Reading [77% 71% 87% 87% 90% 85% 73%
Writing (TA) |]90% 73% 91% 87% 93% 95% 78%
Maths 86% 59% 91% 87% 97% 85% 79%
SPaG 91%’ 55% 91% 100% 90% 90% 78%
Combined |76% 51% 87% 87% 90% 85% 65%
Key Stage 2 :
% of pupils working at Greater Depth ,
Earley St|Coombes |[St Crazies Sonning  |St Nicholas|National
Peter’s Sebastian’s [Hill )
Reading [47% 19% 30% 40% 50% 50% 27%
Wiriting (TA) [67% 17% 17% 26% . [20% 5% - 120%
Maths 30% 15% 43% 33% 47% 40% 27%
SPaG 69% 15% 43% 33% 47% 40% 36%
Combined [20% 8% 14% 20% 20% 5% 1%
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
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'Key Stage 1

% of pupils reaching the Expected Standard and at Greater Depth

Earley St|Coombes |[St Crazies Sonning  |St Nicholas|National

Peter’s Sebastian’s [Hill
Reading 72% 74% 58% 93% 90% 80% 75%
Writing 70% 72% 50% 93% 80% 75% 70%
IMaths 76% 76% 63% 93% 90% 85% 76%
Combined [67% 63% 42% 93% 80% 75% 65%

Key Stage 1
% of pupils reaching Greater Depth

Earley St/Coombes |[St Crazies Sonning  |St Nicholas|National

Peter’s Sebastian’s [Hill
Reading 18% 21% 8% 26% 31% 25% 25%
Writing 12% 26% 16% 47% 28% 5% 15%
Maths 21% 26% 4% 60% 22% 25% 22%
Combined [10% 13% 4% 40% 27% 5% 1% -

Year One Phonics Screen

Earley St|Coombes |St Crazies Sonning [St Nicholas|National

Peter’s Sebastian’s |Hill

83% 66% 80% 186% 93% 100% 82%

Year Two Cumulative Phonics Screen

Earley St/Coombes |St Crazies Sonning |St Nicholas|National

Peter’s : Sebastian’s |Hill :

97% 93% 75% Jgs% 100% 95% 92%

EYFS: Good Level of Development

Earley St|Coombes |St Crazies Sonning  [St Nicholas|National

Peter’'s Sebastian’s |Hill

71% 72% 73% 75% "183% 56% "172%
Key Stage 2 OQutcomes

Nationally, 65% of pupils achieved the expected standard and above in reading, writing and maths. In the Trust,
significantly more pupils in five out of six schools achieved the expected standard and above in reading, writing
and maths. In The Coombes, although not above the national figure, approximately half the children achieved the
expected standard and above. Attainment had been identified as a cohort specific issue throughout the year.

Nationally, 11% of pupils achieved the greater depth standard in reading, writing and maths. In the Trust, more
pupils in four out of six schools achieved greater depth in reading, writing and maths. The number of pupils in

The Coombes and St Nicholas were below the national figures.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Key. Stage 1 Outcomes :

Nationally, 65% of pupils achieved the expected standard and above in reading, wrltlng and maths. In the Trust
significantly more pupils in four out of six schools achieved the expected standard and above in reading, writing
and maths. In St Sebastian’s, although not above the national figure, 42% of the children achieved the expected
standard and above. Attainment had been identified as a cohort specific issue throughout the year.

Phonics Screening Year 1
In four out of six schools a larger percentage of pupils passed the phonics screenmg test compared to the
national figure of 82%.

Early Years Foundation Stage

The percentage of pupils in four out of six schools in the Trust achieved a Good Level of Development above or
in line with the national percentage of 72%. In St Nicholas over half the pupils achieved a good level of
development which was below the national figures.

Progress from the end of Key Stage 1 to the end of Key Stage 2

Earley St Peter’s Church of England Primary School
Reading Wirriting Maths

176 | Well above average [Average o Lo T -0.7]

The Coombes Church of England Primary School
Reading Writing Maths

{Average

[Average wm - w18 [Average ... . 713

St Sebastian’s Church of England Primary School

Reading Writing Maths
{average” i " 25 [average . - 13 25
Sonning Church of England Primary School
Reading Wiriting Maths
faverage . iToiv§is,. 18] [Averagei . C.v. . 0.7 274}
St Nicholas Church of England Primary School
Reading Wiriting Maths

. T aaie L4y
Average ot E 7 o

N T )|
Crazies Hill Church of England Primary School

Reading , Wiriting Maths

(average i zn TOURREL . 16

Impact of Covid-19

All our schools were responsive in the provision of remote Ieamlng during the pandemic and national lockdowns.
Our schools sought innovative ways to work in partnership with parents and. pupils to develop a whole new
approach to learning online whilst supporting vulnerable pupils and the pupils of key workers in school. There
has been an impact on progress and attainment of our pupils across the Trust and we have seen that remote
learning worked better for some groups of pupils and for some subjects. In terms of reading, writing and maths,
better progress was made in reading and maths and writing continues to be a focus across our schools. The
widening of the attainment gap between pupil premium and non-pupil premium pupils reflected in national and
local figures is also seen across the Trust.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
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Key performance indicators

and the Director of Learning/CEO to have a direct

influence on their leadership skills/practice and a greater|

opportunity to talent spot future leaders

FOCUS KPI ) STATUS
Growth Strategy To ensure the smooth transition of two convertor schools MET
Winto the Trust and establish a new free primary school,
. |Alder Grove CE Primary School that is at the heart of its
community
To set up a website and carry out a consultation with| PARTIALLY MET
local stakeholders to secure agreement for The Keys
Academy Trust to enter a funding agreement with the
Secretary of State for Education and manage the school
at Matthewsgreen
To work with local stakeholders, WBC and DfE to MET
develop an admissions policy so that the
Matthewsgreen school may be part of WBC's
coordinated round of Admissions for September 2022
To work with the Construction Company Reds10 and] PARTIALLY MET
WBC to ensure the Matthewsgreen school building will] (due to be handed
be ready for handover on 1st April 2022 over to WBC at the
end of November
2021)
To set up regular network meetings with Senior Leaders MET

To identify and work with schools to create a pipeline

PARTIALLY MET

School Performance

KS2 DATA 2019: To increase % of pupils achieving
expected and GD in rrw,m and compare favourably to
national averages. '
For progress measures to be at least in line with
national figures in r,w,m in all schools

PARTIALLY MET

EYFS data: all schools to be broadly in line with national
GLD figures’ :

MET

To run a series of Roundtable Meetings led by the
Director of Learning for all schools to support Curriculum
Design and Pedagogy

MET

To set up regular network meetings with SENDCos and
the Director of Learning/CEQO to enable the Trust to
better support pupils with SEND by sharing expertise

MET

|ITo introduce an online process for rigorous moderation

across the Trust

MET

HR

To induct the three new schools in using the Access
People system to standardise procedures within the
trust ' ’ ' :

MET

To advise LGBs on models of leadership, produce
financial models and develop the role of Executive

MET

Leaders within the Trust

-10- -
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Govermnance To expand the number of Trustees within the Trust to - MET

build capacity and appropriate skillsets
To review a skills audit submitted by the Local MET
Governing Body’s and follow up any issues
To hold termly briefings for Chairs and Headteachers MET
To offer governance training for all schools within the MET
trust and in the pipeline
To hold a strategy day for Trustees to develop Growth MET
Strategy

Sponsor school Director of Learning to lead teaching and learning in The MET
Coombes .
To increase the number on roll at Census day, October MET
2021
To support budget management and cost control MET
To support recruitment of Teaching staff PARTIALLY MET
To reduce the PAN at The Coombes from 75 to 60 to MET
help manage the pupil turnover :

The Trust reviews financial Key Performance Indicators on a termly basis across the schools, including Total
Staff Costs to ESFA Revenue Income, Total Staff Costs to Total Income, Total Staff Costs as a Proportion of Total
Expense, Pupil Teacher Ratio at school and Key Stage level, Proportion of budget spent on Leadership Team,
Proportion of budget spent on SLT and Spend per pupil for non-pay expenditure lines.

Going concern
After making appropriate enquiries, the board of trustees has a reasonable expectation that the academy- trust

has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, the
board of trustees continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the accounts. Further details regarding
the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the statement of accounting policies.

N

-11-
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Fmanclal review

The majority of the Trust's income for the year was received through the Education and Skulls Funding Agency,
which is a recurrent revenue grant into the Restricted General Fund. The grants received during the year ended
31 August 2021 and the associated expenditure are shown in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Due to the three additional schools in the Trust, the revenue grants have increased from £7,247,502 to
£9,845,845. The majority of this income is spent on wages and salaries and these represent across the trust
80% of total costs.

The total funds before capital, fixed assets and pension reserve have increased over the year from £1,428,821 to
£1,811,954. This increase in revenue funds is due to the impact of the Covid 19 pandemic where expenditure on
premises could not be scheduled, catering costs were lower than budgeted, and staffing vacancies were not
filled in the lockdown period in early 2021. In addition, a cautious budget had been set for extended services
income for the year across the schools and attendance in these clubs returned to higher levels than anticipated
and schools were able to access the furlough scheme for extended services staff. The amount of donations
were also much higher than budgeted and the schools were able to purchase educational materials with these
funds.

The trust also receives grants for fixed assets from the DfE and other organisations and these are shown as
Restricted Fixed Assets Funds in the Statement of Financial Activities. The balance of the Restricted Fixed Asset
fund is reduced by the depreciation charge on the assets acquired using these funds. . .

The total'restricted fixed asset fund has increased from £712,722 to £13,657,866 due to the addition of Alder
Grove Primary School.

The balance sheet includes an amount of £6,139,000 (2020: £3,572,000) for the Defined benefit pension liability
that arises on the deficit on the LGPS scheme. This amount has increased due to the three new schools joining .
the trust this year. Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education to a guarantee
that, in the event of academy trust closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be
met by the Department for Education.

The LGPS Pension Deficit is Inkely to be met in the longer term from any combination of mcreased employer
" contributions, increased government funding or change to scheme benefits.’

Reserves policy
The Trust's policy for reserves is that a minimum of 3% of ESFA General Annual Grant Statement is retalned for

each academy.

The Trust has set out the purpose of such reserves as follows:

» An unforeseen emergency or unexpected need for funds, e.g. an unexpected large repair bill,

» Covering unforeseen day to day operational costs, e.g. employing temporary staff to cover a long-term
absence,

A grant not being renewed,

Significant planned commitments or pro;ects that cannot-be met by future income alone

The need to fund short-term deficits in cash flow before a funding grant is received.

Managing the change in pupil numbers

-12-
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

On 31 Auguét 2021 the Academy held ihe following Reserves (ekcluding Fixed Asset Fund- which represents Net
Book Value and Pension Deficit):

; £
Unrestricted General Funds 740,820
Restricted Capital Funds 241,187
Restricted General Funds 1,071,134
Reserves at 31 August 2021 ' 2,053,141

These reserves are being held for the management of the impact on funding due to declining pupil numbers over
the next two years across two of the schools within the Trust; the urgent and unplanned repairs on premises on
several school sites due to the condmon of the buildings and for significant planned capital projects across the
trust.

Investment policy
The Keys Academy Trust does not have any investments, except for the cash balances at Lloyds Bank plc.

Principal risks and uncertainties
-The major risks to which the MAT is exposed are:

Shortfalls in funding which have not been anticipated

Impact of the national-funding formula

Teacher recruitment which impacts on outcomes, staff costs and staff retention rates
Increasing staff costs

Falling rolls at schools within the Trust

Changes in government policy regarding academies

Poor performance of schools within the Trust

Poor condition of school buildings

Failures in Safeguarding or Health and Safety procedures at schools within the Trust

e o o o o o o o o

All risks are reflected in the Trust’s risk register and are reviewed at the Finance and Audit Committee.

-13-
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
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Plans for future periods

School Improvement

The School Improvement Offer by the Trust continues to focus on developing quality first teaching and improving
teacher assessment skills using Target Tracker as a tool to drive both planning and assessment. In addition, the
Trust has delivered CPD focussing on curriculum review and design and introduced the use of knowledge
organisers in all the schools to support the development of a knowledge led curriculum. The School lmprovement
-team continues to lead moderation sessions for teachers at the end of EYFS, KS1 and KS2.

In the academic year 2020/2021, the Trust introduced a model for online moderation across all the schools using
Microsoft Office 365. A working party of teachers across the Trust developed a set of protocols and the rigorous
process was received very favourably by teachers from all the schools. The Trust will continue to build on this
model and expand it to include moderation in writing for all year groups in Key Stage 1 and 2.

To build capacity in each school, the development of Subject Leaders continues to be a shared focus in the
School Improvement Plans. Subject Leaders across the Trust benefit from collaboration, sharing good practice/
resources and curriculum development and the Leadership Programme supports Subject Leaders to develop the
skills required in line with the increased expectations in the Ofsted Framework. A methodology to support Deep
Dives and Peer Reviews to support School Improvement will continue to be implemented.

The Trust continues to work in partnership with the Forest Learning Alliance (FLA), a local Teaching School to
deliver sessions .on curriculum design. The Trust has been asked to deliver further sessions and will be running a
programme Intelligent Subject Leadership in 2021/22 which will be accessed by schools in Bracknell Forest and
Wokingham LA. The Trust continues to develop its online CPD offer through Roundtables led by our Director of
Leaming has successfully switched from face to face to remote training during the national lockdown and will
build on this approach as it enables a higher level of engagement across the Trust.

in 2021, the Trust set up regular network meetings for SENDCos across the Trust to support the provision for
pupils. This will continue in 2021/22 and we plan to rationalise the SEN processes and documentation across
the Trust and introduce Speech and Language resource which has been identified as a need in all our schools
post pandemic.

Network meetings for Deputy and Assistant Headteachers were also introduced in 2021 led by the CEO and
Director of Teaching and Learning which embed the Trust values and develop positive working relationships.
These will also continue as they are a positive mechanism to drive school improvement across the Trust.

Early Career Framework

The Keys is working with Teaching School Hub Berkshire to deliver the University College London's (UCL) Early
Career Teachers (ECT) programme. This is a combination of online and face to face sessions. The Trust has
two cohorts one with Wokingham ECTs and one with Reading ECTs and our Director of Learning is the lead
facilitator. Headteachers within the Trust have nominated middle leaders to co-facilitate on this programme.

National Professional Qualifications (NPQs)

The Keys will also be a Delivery Partner with Church of England’s Foundation for Educational Leadership
(CEFEL) to deliver the new NPQ suite of training. This CPD will begin to be delivered from March- 2022. The
Director of Learning will be lead facilitator for the NPQLTD and the CEQ will be facilitating the NPQH. We have
also identified Senior Leaders in our schools to be trained as coaches for the programme.

New Schools

" Our first new school, Alder Grove Church of England Primary School opened in September 2020 and has
established itself successfully in the heart of the Shinfield Meadows community. It opened with 30 Reception
pupils and a nursery. Due to demand, the school expanded to 60 Reception places in September 2021.

We submitted an appiication for a new primary school in Wokingham as part of our Growth Strategy Plan. The
Trust was appointed to run the new school in Matthewsgreen, St Cecilia’s Church of England Primary School,
which is scheduled to open in September 2022. :
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THE KEYS ACADEMY TRUST

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Convertor Schools '

Opportunities for further schools to join are being explored to allow the Trust to grow so that the Trust can benefit
from more economies of scale. The Trust is in various discussions with schools in the local area to join the Trust.

Funds held as custodian trustee on behalf of others
The trust holds no Assets and Funds as Custodian Trustee on behalf of others.

Auditor

In so far as the trustees are aware; '

- there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is unaware; and

- the trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

The trustees' report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the board of trustees, as the
company directors, on .03.12.21 . and signed on its behalf by:

Rowfts

Jane Peters
Chairperson
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THE KEYS ACADEMY TRUST

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Scope of responsibility . ‘ y . 4
As trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that The Keys Academy Trust has an
effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The board of trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the CEO, as accounting officer, for ensuring
financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and in
accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between The Keys
Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. The accounting officer is also responsible for reporting
to the board of trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Governance :
The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees” Report and in the
Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities.

Following the national lockdown for the Covid-19 pandemic that was enforced in March 2020, the trustees and
local governing bodies continued their governance via virtual meetings.

The board of trustees formally met 5 times during the year. Attendance during the year at meetings of the board
‘of trustees was as follows: ' ) ' '

Trustees Meetings attended Out of possible

.Rev Hannah Hobday

David Hoerrocks (Vice Chairperson)
Michael Mill (Appointed 12 March 2021)
Jane Peters (Chairperson)

Rachel Pither

" Penelope Jane Williams

Hester Wooller (Accounting Officer)

AN
O ;N OO,

The trustees have carried out a review of governance during the year.

As a result of the changes in trustees during the year, the board have identified the need to appoint trustees with
legal experience. ,

The next self-evaluation review of governance will be carried out at the Trust Strategy Day in January 2022,
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THE KEYS ACADEMY TRUST

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Committees
There are 3 sub committees of the main board of trustees;

» Finance and Audit Committee
« Curriculum Effectiveness and Church Ethos Committee
« Pay and Personnel Committee

Finance and Audit Committee

The finance and audit committee is a sub-committee of the main board of trustees. Its purpose is to:

Review the finance manual and make recommendations to the Board of Trustees

‘Review systems of internal financial control

Receive and respond to the external audit report

Review internal control and report findings to the Board of Trustees

Consider and act on recommendations in the Internal Auditor’s report

Review and consider the Trust and schools’ Risk Registers and advise the Board as necessary

¢ o o ¢ o o

Key issues for the finance and audit committee for the period were:

+ To review the Trust Finance Manual with all appropriate policies and procedures
.* To review the risk within the Trust .
» To produce an annual timetable of the key deliverables

There were 5 finance and audit committee meetings in the year ended 31 August 2021.

Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:

Trustees Meetings attended Out of possible

Rev Hannah Hobday .
Michael Mill (Appointed 12 March 2021)
Jane Peters (Chairperson)

Penelope Jane Williams

Hester Wooller (Accounting Officer)

AN O;

A AN O
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Curriculum Effectivéness and Church Ethos
The purpose of the CE and CE Committee is to:

.

To monitor curriculum advice, guidance and effective implementation across the Trust.

To monitor pupil outcomes (to include data, attendance, behaviour, SEN and disadvantaged groups)
across the Trust and identify actions in collaboration with the CEO to support the schools as appropriate.
To ensure that the distinctive Christian values of the Trust are upheld and supported in its schools
including through SMSC provision and with regard to the SIAMS framework.

To monitor the spiritual and pastoral care of all members of our schools’ communities, ensuring that
leaders are supported and trained.

There were six curriculum effectiveness and church ethos committee meetings in the year ended 31 August
2021. Attendance during the year at meetings of the curriculum effectiveness and church ethos committee was

as follows:

Trustee Meetings Attendegl Out of a possibEI
Hannah Hobday 6 6
David Horrocks 6| 6
Michael Mill (appointed 12/03/2021) 1 2
Jane Peters 6 6
Hester Wooller : : 6] : 6]

Pay & Personnel

The pay and personnel committee is a sub-committee of the main board of tfustees. Its purpose is to:

Pay and Conditions

To review the salaries of centrally employed staff each year, taking account of any recommendatlons
made by officers of the Trust in respect of the annual appraisal process.

In consultation with the Finance and Audit Commiittee, to review and recommend to the Trust changes to
the pay policy, having undertaken any appropriate consultation.

To establish arrangements and monitoring facilities to achieve the aims of the Trust's pay policy in a fair
and equitable manner.

To oversee and monitor the application of the criteria set out in the Trust's pay policy in determining
matters relating to the pay of members of staff.

To consider and approve recommendations for discretionary payments.

To consider and approve changes to job grading for existing/new posts.

Personnel

e o ¢ o o

To agree/recommend any pay and personnel related statutory and other policies to be adopted across
the Trust's schools - e.g. appraisal, disciplinary, equality. Copies of policies will be on the Trust's website
once established.

To set up appointment panels where required for staff at Headteacher and Deputy Headteacher level, for
centrally employed staff and for such other posts as may be determined.

To advise the Trust on the implication of any changes in employment legislation affecting |t

To receive, consider and approve changes to the management structure of the Trust’s schools

To be notified of any disciplinary/grievance, and provide support as appropriate.

To hear appeals against dismissal.

To make recommendations to the Trust on the appountment of new Trustees and members of Local
Govérning Bodies and analogous committees.

To monitor admissions policies and appeals arrangements in the Trust's schools and to make any
appropriate recommendations to the Trust.
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

There were ﬁve pay and personnel méetings in the year ended 31 August 2021.
Attendance at meetings in the year was as follows:

Trustees Meetings attended Out of possible

Michael Mill (Appointed 12 March 2021)
Jane Peters (Chairperson)

Rachel Pither

Penelope Jane Williams

Hester Wooller (Accounting Officer)

AP OAN
OO N

Review of value for money

As Accounting Officer, the CEO has responsibility for ensuring that the academy trust delivers good value in the
use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and
wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money during
each academic year, and reports to the board of trustees where value for money can be improved, including the
use of benchmarking data where available. The accountmg officer for the academy trust has dellvered improved
- value for money during the year by:

Ensuring a high level of support has been targeted at the sponsor school. Educational outcomes in 2016 at the
end of KS2 were below national figures in writing, maths and the combined reading, writing and maths in which
only 47% of pupils achieved age related expectations and 3% achieved the higher grade. The CEO, has been
supporting teaching and leamning since December 2016 and the outcomes have increased significantly to 75%
achieving age related expectations and 14% achieving the higher grade in 2018. These figures are higher than
national and the local Wokingham LA results. There has been no additional cost to the trust and all CPD
focusing on teaching and leaming has been led by members of the Senior Leaders at ESP.

The trust has continued to work closely with the senior leadership management team at The Coombes to
improve the financial management at the school during the year. Staffing levels have been scrutinised
extensively and there are fewer agency staff in place and there has been a significant review of other
expenditure.

The central team at the Trust has continued to support all the schools during the pandemic with weekly
leadership meetings for Headteachers, negotiation with suppliers, and support to schools to access the furlough
scheme for extended services staff.

Following the addition of three schools to the Trust, the Trust has reviewed the staffing structure of the finance
support across the schools which has resulted in financial efficiencies. A set of financial metrics have been
introduced that schools are expected to follow when setting their budgets.

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all, nsk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of academy trust -policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the
- likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently,
effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in The Keys Academy Trust for the -
period 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and accounts.
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Capaclty to handle risk

The board of trustees has reviewed the key nsks to which the academy trust is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The board of
trustees is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
academy trust's significant risks that has been in place for the period 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 and
up to the date of approval of the annual report and accounts. This process is regularly reviewed by the board of
- trustees.

The risk and control framework

The academy trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management
information and administrative procedures mcludmg the segregation of duties and a system of delegatlon and
accountability. In particular, it includes:

» comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems ‘with an annual budget and periodic financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the board of trustees;

* regular reviews by the finance and audit committee of reports which indicate financial performance against
the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;

+ setting targets to measure financial and other performance;

« clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines;

+ delegation of authority and segregation of duties;

* identification and management of risks.

The board of trustees has considered the need for specific internal audit and appointed Bishop Fleming as its
internal auditor for the year ended 31 August 2021. The internal auditor’s role includes giving advice on financial
matters and performing a range of checks on the Trust's financial systems. In particular, the checks carried out
in the current penod included: '

» Review of employee contracts and f les

* Review of payroll procedures to ensure that they have been followed in accordance with the Trust's
finance manual

* Review of LGPS and TPS contribution rates
* Review of the Single Central Record

The internal auditor has reported to the Board of Trustees on these systems of control and the Trust can confirm
that the internal auditor has delivered their scope of work and that there have been no material control issues
requiring remedial action.

\

Review of effectiveness
As accounting officer, the CEO has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal controf.
During the year in question the review has been informed by:

"+ the work of the internal auditor/reviewer,
+ the work of the external auditor; ‘
+ the financial management and governance self-assessment process or the school resource management
self-assessment tool,
+ the work of the executive managers within the academy trust who have responsrblllty for the development
and maintenance of the internal control framework . .
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

The accounting ofﬁéer has been advised of the implications of the resuit of their review of the system of internal
control by the finance and audit committee and a plan to ensure continuous improvement of the system is in
place.

Approved by order of the board of trustees on ........ 03.12.21 . and signed on its behalf by:
—

[Jeue fotua Wk g Wartlne

Jane Peters - : Hester Wooller

Chairperson ~ Accounting Officer
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THE KEYS ACADEMY TRUST

STATEMENT OF REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

As accounting officer of The Keys Academy Trust, | have considered my responsibility to notify the academy trust
board of trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and
non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the academy trust, under the funding
agreement in place between the academy trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my
consideration | have had due regard to the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2020.

| confirm that | and the academy trust's board of trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper
use of funds by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under
the academy trust's funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2020.

| confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-i:ompliance have been discovered
to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the board of
trustees and ESFA. :

Uuic g Wl

Hester Wooller .
Accounting Officer

03.12.21
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THE KEYS ACADEMY TRUST

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

The trustees (who are also the directors of The Keys Academy Trust for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the trustees' report and the accounts in accordance with the Academies Accounts
Direction 2020 to 2021 published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the trustees to prepare accounts for each financial year. Under company law, the trustees
must not approve the accounts unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and
expenditure, for that period.

In preparing these accounts, the trustees are required to:

+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

+ observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2020 to 2021;

+ make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

+ state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the accounts; and

+ prepare the accounts on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the charitable
company will continue in business.

The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
charitable company and enable them to ensure that the accounts comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensuring that grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied for
the purposes intended. ‘ : '

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included
- on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of accounts may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the board of trustees on LLase and signed on its behalf by:
Joa fotun Wk g Wortler
Jane Peters Hester Wooller

Chairperson - - Accounting Officer
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THE KEYS ACADEMY TRUST

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE KEYS ACADEMY
TRUST

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Opinion

We have audited the accounts of The Keys Academy Trust for the year ended 31 August 2021 which comprise
the statement of financial activities, the balance sheet, the statement of cash flows and the notes to the
accounts, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has
been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including
Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of -
Ireland' (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies
Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the accounts:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company's affairs as at 31 August 2021 and of its
incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then
ended;

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, and

- have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2020 to 2021.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the "Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the accounts' section of our report. We are independent of the academy trust in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the accounts in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requlrements We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the trustees’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the academy trust's ability to continue as
a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for
issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the trustees with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The trustees are responsible for the other information, which comprises the information included in the annual
report other than the accounts and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the accounts does not cover the
other information and, except to the extent otherwise exphcntly stated in our report, we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the accounts, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,

consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the accounts or our knowledge obtained in

the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent.

material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the accounts

or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
" there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE KEYS ACADEMY
TRUST (CONTINUED) ' " '

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the trustees' report including the incorporated strategic report for the financial year
for which the accounts are prepared is consistent with the accounts; and

- the trustees' report including the incorporated strategic report has been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the academy trust and its environment obtained in the course
of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the trustees' report, including the incorporated
strategic report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006

requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

- the accounts are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

- certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the statement of trustees' responsibilities, the trustees are responsible for the
preparation of the accounts and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control
as the trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of.accounts that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the accounts, the trustees are responsible for assessing the academy trust’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concem basis of
accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the charitable company, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so. ' B ' '

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the accounts

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the accounts as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or ‘error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these accounts.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities,
including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is
detailed below. ' ' ‘ ‘

-25-



THE KEYS ACADEMY TRUST

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE KEYS ACADEMY
TRUST (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Our approach to identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities, including
fraud and non-compliance with laws and regulations, was as follows:

+ the engagement partner ensured that the engagement team collectively had the appropriate
competence, capabilities and skills to identify or recognise non-compliance with appllcable laws and
regulations;

+ we identified the laws and regulations applicable to the company through discussions with trustees and
other management, and from our commercial knowledge and experience of the client's business sector;

+ we focused on specific laws and regulations which we considered may have a direct material effect on
the financial statements or the operations of the company, including the Companies Act 2006, the
Charities Act 2011, ESFA requirements, taxation legislation, data protection, anti-bribery, employment,
environmental and health and safety legislation;

+ we assessed the extent of compliance with the laws and regulatuons identified above through making
enquiries of management and inspecting legal correspondence; and

+ identified laws and regulations were communicated with the audit team regularly and the team remained
alert to instances of non-compliance throughout the audit.

We assessed the susceptibility of the company's financial statements to material misstatement, |nc|ud|ng
obtaining an understanding of how fraud might occur, by:
» making enquiries of management as to where they considered there was susceptibility to fraud, their
knowledge of actual, suspected and alleged fraud; and .
+ considering the internal controls in pIace to mitigate risks of fraud and non- compllance wrth laws and
regulations. -

To address the risk of fraud through management bias and override of controls, we:
+ performed analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relatlonshrps
+ tested journal entries to identify unusual transactions; :
» assessed whether judgements and assumptions made in determining whether accounting estimates
were indicative of potential bias; and
+ investigated the rationale behind significant or unusual transactions.

In response to the risk of rrregularmes and non-compliance W|th laws and regulatrons we designed procedures
which included, but were not limited to:

agreeing financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting documentation;

reading the minutes of meetings of those charged with governance;

enquiring of management as to actual and potential litigation and claims; and

-reviewing correspondence with HMRC, the ESFA and the company’s legal advisors.

There are inherent limitations in our audit procedures described above. The more removed that laws and
regulations are from financial transactions, the less likely it is that we would become aware of non-compliance.
Auditing standards also limit the audit procedures required to identify non-compliance with laws and regulations
to enquiry of the directors/trustees and other management and the inspection of regulatory and legal
correspondence, if any.

Material misstatements that arise due to fraud can be harder to detect than those that arise from error as they
may involve deliberate concealment or collusion. . .

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the accounts is located on the Financial Reporting
Council's website at: http://www.frc.org. uklaudltorsresponssbllrtles This description forms part of our auditor's
report. .
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE KEYS ACADEMY
TRUST (CONTINUED) | | '

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable
company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than
the charitable company and the charitable company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or
for the opinions we have formed.

V /s

Robert Kirtland (Senior Statutory Auditor) ‘
for and on behalf of Critchleys Audit LLP 17 December 2021

Chartered Accountants ) )
Statutory Auditor Beaver House
: ‘ i 23-38 Hythe Bridge Street
Oxford
OX1 2EP
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" INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON
REGULARITY TO THE KEYS ACADEMY TRUST AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS
FUNDING AGENCY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 18 September 2017 and further to the requirements
of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to
2021, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed
and income received by The Keys Academy Trust during the period 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 have
been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities
which govern them.

This report is made solely to The Keys Academy Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the The Keys Academy Trust and
ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than The Keys Academy Trust and ESFA, for
our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of The Keys Academy Trust's accounting officer and the reporting
accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of The Keys Academy Trust's funding agreement
with the Secretary of State for Education dated 28 June 2017 and the Academies Financial Handbook, extant
from 1 September 2020, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsnb:lltles for this engagement are established in the United Klngdom by our profession’s ethical
guidance, and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021. We report to you whether anything has come
to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that-in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the period 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authoritigs which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and
Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as
defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in" order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

- Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propnety of the
academy trust's income and expenditure. : .

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

+ Review of minutes of meetings of the Board of Trustees and obtaining representations concerning access to
information, disclosure and provision of information.

« Evaluation of the general control environment of the academy trust, extendlng the procedures requlred for
financial statements to include regularity.

+ Assessment and testing of a sample of the specific control activities over regularity of a particular activity.

» Carrying out substantive testing to cover authorisation of expenditure. within internal delegated. authorities
and externally imposed limits.

« Consideration of whether activities carried out are within the charitable objects.
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THE KEYS ACADEMY TRUST

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON
REGULARITY TO THE KEYS ACADEMY TRUST AND THE EDUCATION AND SKILLS
FUNDING AGENCY (CONTINUED) :

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2020 to 31 August 2021 has not
been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities

which govern them.

CAAY HATE L6

Reporting Accountant
Critchleys Audit LLP
Beaver House

23-38 Hythe Bridge Street
Oxford

OX1 2EP
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THE KEYS ACADEMY TRUST

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Income and endowments from:
Donations and capital grants
Donations - transfer from local
authority on conversion

Charitable activities:

- Funding for educational operation
Other trading activities :
Investments

Total
Expenditure on:
Charitable activities:

- Educational operations

Total

Net income/(expenditure)
Transfers between funds

Other recognised gains/(losses)
* Actuarial losses on defined benefit
pension schemes

Net movement in funds

Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward

Total funds carried forward

Notes

25

17

19

Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total Total
funds General Fixed asset 2021 2020
£ £ £ £ £
30,179 - _ 147,669 13,478,997 13,656,845 163,299
17,173 (917,887) 35,806 (864,908) (327,387)
452,520 9,845,845 - 10,298,365 7,557,289
13,677 - - 13,677 31,348
992 - - 992 1,181
514,541 9,075,627 13,514,803 23,104,971 7,425,730
453,885 10,633,855 487,944 11,575,694 7,799,703
453,895 10,633,855 487,944 11,575,694 7,799,703
60,646 (1,558,228) 13,026,859 11,529,277 (373,973)
- 81,715 (81,715) - -
- (768,000) - (768,000) (178,000)
60,646 (2,244,513) 12,945,144 10,761,277 (551,973)
680,174 (2,823,353) 712,722 (1,430,457) (878,484)
740,820 (5,067,866) 13,‘657,866 9,330,820 (1,430,457)
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THE KEYS ACADEMY TRUST

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)
INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

FOR.THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021 .

Comparative year information
Year ended 31 August 2020

Income and endowments from:
Donations and capital grants

Donations - transfer from local authority on
conversion

Charitable activities:

- Funding for educational operations
Other trading activities

Investments

Total

Expenditure on:

Charitable activities:

- Educational operations

Total

Net income/(expenditure)
Transfers between funds

Other recognised gains/(losses)

Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension
schemes

Net movement in funds

Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward

Total funds carried forward

Notes

25

[ K’ -

17

19

Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total
funds General Fixed asset 2020
£ £ £ £
89,727 - 73572 163,299
135,526 (521,414) 58,501 (327,387)
309,787 7,247,502 - 7,557,289
31,348 - - 31,348
1,181 - - 1,181
567,569 6,726,088 132,073 7,425,730
354,297 7,415,614 29,792 7,799,703
354,297 7,415,614 29,792 7,799,703
213,272 (689,526) 1 02,2'81 (373,973)
- 10,633 (10,633) -
- (178,000) - (178,000)
213,272 (856,893) 91,648 (551 ,973)
466,902 (1,966,460) 621,074 (878,484)
680,174 (2,823,353) 712,722 (1,430,457)
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THE KEYS ACADEMY TRUST

are signed on their behalf by:

Jane Peters-
Chairperson

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2021
- 2021 2020

Notes £ £ £ £
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 13 13,416,679 527,339
Current assets - : :
Debtors 14 647,165 474,913
Cash at bank and in hand 2,479,179 1,892,823

3,126,344 2,367,736

Current liabilities ‘ :
Creditors: amounts falling due within one L.
year 15 (1,073,203) (753,532)
Net current assets 2,053,141 1,614,204
Net assets excluding pension liability 15,469,820 2,141,543
Defined benefit pension scheme liability 19 (6,139,000) (3,572,000)
Total net assets/(liabilities) 9,330,820 (1,430,457)

.Funds of the academy trust:

‘Restricted funds ‘ 17 .
- Fixed asset funds 13,657,866 712,722
- Restricted income funds 1,071,134 748,647
- Pension reserve ’ (6,139,000) (3,572,000)
Total restricted funds 8,590,000 " (2,110,631)
Unrestricted income funds 17 740,820 680,174
Total funds 9,330,820° (1,430,457)
The accounts on pages 30 to 57 were approved by the trustees and authorised for issue on ....... 931221 and

Company Number 10818575
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THE KEYS ACADEMY TRUST

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Notes

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash provided by operating activities 20
Cash funds transferred on conversion

Cash flows from investing activities

Dividends, interest and rents from investments
Capital grants from DfE Group

Capital funding received from sponsors and others
Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Net cash used in investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents in the
" reporting period ' ‘

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

2021

£ £

448,452

215,092

663,544
992
53,623
(131,803)

(77,188)

586,356

1,892,823

2,479,179

2020

£ £

372,046

272,613

644,659
1,181
40,947
132,625
(100,790)

(26,037)

" 618,622

1,274,201

1,892,823
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THE KEYS ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

1.1

1.2

1.3

14

Accounting policies

The Keys Academy Trust is a charitable company. The address of its principal place of business is given
on page 1 and the nature of its operations are set out in the trustees' report.

A summary of the. principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except
where noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation

The accounts of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared
under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the
UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of
Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)),
the Academies Accounts Direction 2020 to 2021 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the
Companies Act 2006.

The Keys Academy Trust meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.

Going concern

. The trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate, ie whether there are any material

uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the charitable
company to continue as a going concern. The trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at
least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the accounts and have concluded that the
academy trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and
there are no material uncertainties about the academy trust's ability to continue as a goirig concern. Thus
they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the accounts.

Conversion to an academy trust

The conversion from a state maintained school to an academy trust involved the transfer of identifiable
assets and liabilities and the operation of the school for £nil consideration. The substance of the transfer is
that of a gift and it has been accounted for on that basis as set out below

The assets and Ilabllmes transferred on conversion to the academy trust have been valued at their fair
value. The fair value has been. derived based on that of equivalent items. The amounts have been
recognised under the appropriate balance sheet categories, with a corresponding amount recognised in
Donations — transfer from local authority on conversion in the Statement of Financial Activities and
analysed under unrestricted funds, restricted general funds and restricted fixed asset funds. Further details
of the transaction are set out in note 25.

Income
All incoming resources are recognised when the academy trust has entltlement to the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can be measured reliably. . .

Grants

. Grants are mcluded in the statement of ﬁnancual activities on a recelvable basis. The balance of income

received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the
balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there
is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as
deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income
is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the statement of financial activities in the period for which it is
receivable, and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a
liability. - .




THE KEYS ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

1.5

Accounting policies : : ‘ . (Continued)

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entittement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants
are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are
expended,

Sponsorship income

Sponsorship income provided to the academy trust which amounts to a donation is recognised in the
statement of financial activities in the period in which it is receivable (where there are no performance-
related conditions), where the receipt is probable and it can be measured reliably.

Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions) where
the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other income
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the
academy trust has provided the goods or services.

Donated goods, facilities and services

Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the
expected costs of sale. If it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in stock and
‘Income from other trading activities’. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against ‘Income from
other trading activities’ and the proceeds are recognised as ‘Income from other trading activities’. Where it
is impractical to fair value the items due to the volume of low value items they are not recognised in the
accounts until they are sold. This income is recognised within ‘Income from other trading activities’.

-Donated fixed assets . . : :

Donated fixed assets are measured at fair value unless it is impractical to measure this reliably, in which
case the cost of the item to the donor is used. The gain is recognised as income from donations and a
corresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over the useful
economic life in accordance with the academy trust's accounting policies.

" Transfer of assets on conversion

Where assets and liabilities are received by the academy trust on conversion to an academy, the
transferred net assets are measured at fair value and recognised in the balance sheet at the point when the
risks and rewards of ownership pass to the academy trust. Income equal to the net assets transferred on
conversion is recognised within donations and capital grant income.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a
third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement, and the amount .
of the obligation can be measured reliably.

Expenditure is ¢classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and
shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a
single activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity
and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on
a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent,
and depreciation charges are allocated on the portion of the asset’s use.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.
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THE KEYS ACADEMY TRUST

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021 A

1.6

17

18

1.9

Accounting policies : : : (Continued)

Expenditure on raising funds
This includes all expenditure incurred by the academy trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes and

includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable activities
These are costs incurred on the academy trust's educational operations, including support costs and costs
relating to the governance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable activities.

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation
Assets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised as tangible ﬁxed assets and are carned at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government
or from the private sector, they are included in the balance sheet at cost and depreciated over their
expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding that require the
continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the statement
of financial activities and carried forward in the balance sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is
charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the statement of financial activities. Where tangible-
fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the
unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fi fixed assets, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset
on a straight-line baS|s over its expected useful life, as follows:

Leasehold buildings 50 years from conversion
Leasehold improvements 10-30 years

Computer equipment . 3 years

Furniture and equipment 4 years

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed
assets and their recoverable amounts are recogmsed as impairments. Impairment losses are recognlsed in
the statement of financial activities.

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it
is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the
settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy trust
anticipates it will pay to settie the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods
of services it must provide.

Leased assets ‘ .
Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Fmancnal mstruments :
The academy trust only holds basuc ﬁnanCIaI instruments as def ned in FRS 102. The ﬁnanclal assets and
financial liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement basis are as follows.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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1.10

1.1

Accounting policies . : : (Continued)

Financial assets
Trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at amortised
cost. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities
Trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at amortised
cost. Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments disclosure definition.

Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place
and there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument.

Taxation

The academy trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act
2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.
Accordingly, the academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by chapter 3 part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of
the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively
to charitable purposes.

Pensions benefits

Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
('TPS') and the Local Government Pension Scheme ('LGPS'). These are defined benefit schemes and the
assets are held separately from those of the academy trust.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated to spread the cost of pensions over
employees' working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level
percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government
Actuary based on quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. The TPS is an unfunded
multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS is -
treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions are recognised in
the period to which they relate. . .

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the

academy trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value
and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at
a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and
currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each
balance sheet date. The amounts charged to net income or expenditure are the current service costs and

the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as - -
-part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the

statement of financial activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and

interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by muiltiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the -
beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the
interest income on the scheme assets and the actual. return on the scheme assets is recognised in other

. recognised gains and losses. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised

112

gains and losses.

Fund accounting :
Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the academy trust at the dlscretlon of the trustees.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

-1

Accounting policies : : (Continued)

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by
funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received. with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from Wokingham Borough Council and the Department for Education
Group.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Accounting estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. '

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting

-estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and

assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number

of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used
in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these
assumptions, which are disclosed in note 19, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability.
Furthermore, a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed
at 31 March 2019 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2021. Any
differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would
impact on the carrying amount of the pension fiability.

Critical areas of judgement

The academy trust participates in the Teacher's Pension Scheme (TPS) for qualifying employees. Under
the definitions set out in FRS 102, this is a multi-employer pension scheme. There is insufficient information
about the plan assets and liabilities to be able to reliably account for its share of the defined benefit
obligation and plan assets in the financial statements and therefore the plan is accounted for as a defined
contribution scheme (see note 19).

Donations and capital grants

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds 2021 2020

£ £ £ . £

Donated fixed assets - S - 13238436 13238436 . - -
Capital grants _ _ - 240,561 240,561 164,724
Other donations ) - 30,179 147,669 177,848 98,575
30,179 13,626,666 13,656,845 - - 163,299
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

4

Funding for the academy trust’'s educational operations -

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2021 2020
£ £ £ £

DfE / ESFA grants : - :
General annual grant (GAG) - 7,854,726 7,854,726 5,652,403

Other DfE / ESFA grants:

UIFSM - 263,559 263,559 192,376
Pupit premium - 254,386 254,386 221,019
Others (see below) : - 582,397 582,397 455,362

- 8,955,068 8,955,068 6,521,160

Other government grants

Local authority grants (see below) - 718,317 718,317 726,342
COVID-19 additional funding (DfE/ESFA) . _ ‘
Catch-up premium - 161,360 161,360 -
Other DfE/ESFA COVID-19 funding : - - 21,100 21,100 - -

- 172,460 172,460 -
Other incoming resources (see below) ‘ 452,520 B -452,520 309,787 -
Total funding ' 452,520 9,845,845 10,298,365 7,557,289

The academy received £151,360 of funding for catch-up premium and costs incurred in respect of this
funding totalled £120,100, with the remaining £31,260 to be spent in 2021/22.

Other incoming resources include income from clubs £184,105 (2019/20: £140,381), trips and activities
£35,278 (2019/20: £37,573), insurance claims £118,586 (2019/20: £69,138) and catering £20,815
(2019/20: £3,709).

Other ESFA grants include Teachers' Pension Grant of £288,130 (2019/20: £220,318), Teachers' Pay Grant
£96,202 (2019/20: £72,193), Sports Grant £144,270 (2019/20: £108,720), and Rates Reclaim £46,145
(2019/20: £28,531).

Local Authority grants include Early Years funding £380,074 (2019/20: £228,867), SEN funding £217,596
(2019/20: £136,640) and start up funding for Alder Grove of £88,000 (2019/20: 339,845). -

Other trading activities . .
: C Unrestricted - - Restricted Total Total

funds’ - funds © 2021 2020
£ £ £ £
 Hire of facilities | : 13677 - 13,677 31,348
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

6 Investment income ‘
Unrestricted  Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2021 2020
£ £ £ £
Short term deposits 992 - 992 1,181
7 Expenditure
Non-pay expenditure Total Total
Staff costs Premises Other 2021 2020
£ £ £ £ £
Academy's educational operations

- Direct costs 7,070,238 - 406,370 7,476,608 5,506,198
- Allocated support costs 1,766,804 1,350,708 981,574 4,099,086 2,293,505
8,837,042 1,350,708 1,387,944 11,575,694 7,799,703
Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes: 2021 2020
£ £

Fees payable to auditor for: :
- Audit ' : ' 16,775 13,700
- Other services 8,300 7,955
Operating lease rentals 15,179 11,066
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 273,685 29,792
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 207,214 -
Net interest on defined benefit pension liability 71,000 9,000

8 Central services

The academy trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:

* governance
« finance support

« policy

+ school improvement

" The écademy trust charges for these services on the follbwing basis:

5% of GAG income
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8

Central services

{Continued)

The amounts charged during the year were as follows: 2021 2020
£ £
The Coombes CE School 78,957 72,084
Earley St Peter's CE School 90,295 85,141
St Sebastian's CE Primary School 33,302 33,959
Sonning CE Primary School 41,194 32,149
Crazies Hill CE Primary School 23,876 18,066
St Nicholas CE Primary Schoo! 30,164 22,998
Alder Grove CE Primary School 12,487 -
Polehampton CE Junior School 47,070 -
Polehampton CE Infant School 35,278 -
392,623 264,397
Charitable activities
i Unrestricted  Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2021 2020
£ £ £ £
Direct costs
Educational operations 453,895 - 7,022,713 7,476,608 5,506,198
Support costs
Educational operations - 4,099,086 4,099,086 2,293,505
453,895 11,121,799 11,575,694 7,799,703
2021 2020
‘ £ £
Analysis of support costs
Support staff costs 1,766,804 1,062,973
Depreciation 480,899 29,792
Technology costs 220,512 145,754
Premises costs 869,809 465,055
Other support costs 737,490 §74,051
Governance costs 23,572 - 15,880
4,099,086 2,293,505
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10 Staff
Staff costs

Staff costs during the year were:
2021 2020
. £
Wages and salaries 6,187,761 4,411,951
Social security costs 519,782 361,772
Pension costs 1,970,952 1,264,666
Staff costs - employees ‘ 8,678,495 6,038,389
Agency staff costs 145,150 186,131
Staff restructuring costs 13,397 -
8,837,042 6,224,520
Staff development and other staff costs 22,108 27,503
Total staff expenditure ‘ ‘ 8,859,150 6,252,023

Staff restructuring costs comprise:

Redundancy payments : ' : ' : 500 ' -
Severance payments 12,897 -
13,397 -

Non statutory/non-contractual staff severance payments
Included in staff restructuring costs are non-statutory/non-contractual severance payments totalling
£13,397 (2020: £Nil). Individually, the payments were: £12,897 and £500.

Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the academy trust during the year was as follows:
2021 2020
Number Number
Teachers 99 87
Administration and support o o " 211 150
Management : ’ : ’ ‘ 17 15
327 252
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10

1

- Staff : : : (Continued)

The number of persons employed, expressed as a full time equivalent, was as follows:
2021 2020
Number Number
Teachers 75 60
Administration and support 97 72
Management 15 11
187 143

Higher paid staff
The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded
£60,000 was:

2021 2020

Number Number

£60,001 - £70,000 1 1
£70,001 - £80,000 2 1
£80,001 - £90,000 1 -
1 1

£90,001 - £100,000

Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the trustees and the senior management
team as listed on page 1. The total amount of key management personnel employee benefits (including
employer pension contributions and employer national insurance contributions) received by key
management personnel for their services to the academy trust was £287,309 (2020: £259,389).

Trustees' remuneration and expenses

One or more of the trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an
employment with the academy trust. The CEO and other staff trustees only receive remuneration in
respect of services they provide undertaking the roles of CEO and staff members under their contracts of
employment, and not in respect of their services as trustees.

The value of trustees' remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

‘Hester Wooller (CEO and trustee):

* Remuneration- £90,001 - £95,000 (2020: £90, 001 £95,000) :
+ Employer's pension contributions £20 001 - £25,000 (2020: £20,001 - £25 000)

No trustees received any travel and subsistence payments during the year. Expenses of £188 were paid to
one trustee in 2019/2020.. . . .

Other related party transactions involving' the trustees are set out within the related parties note.
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Trustees' and officers’ insurance

The academy trust has opted into the Department for Education’s Risk Protection Arrangement (RPA), an
alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects trustees
and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy trust
business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the trustees and officers
indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme.

The cost of this insurance is included in the total insurance cost but has not been separately identified.

Tangible fixed assets

Leasehold Leasehold Computer Furniture Total
buildings improvements equipment and
equipment
£ £ £ £ £
Cost
At 1 September 2020 447,222 19,846 71,352 75,239 613,659
Additions 13,238,436 32,749 72,035 27,019 13,370,239
Disposals _ (223,611) - - - (223,611)
At 31 August 2021 : 13,462,047 52,595 143,387 102,258 13,760,287
Depreciation
At 1 September 2020 26,832 132 27,768 31,588 86,320
On disposals ‘ - (16,397) C - - T (16,397)
Charge for the year 223,949 469 37,688 11,579 273,685
At 31 August 2021 ' 234,384 - 601 65,456 43,167 343,608
Net book value
At 31 August 2021 13,227,663 51,994 77,931 69,091 13,416,679
At 31 August 2020 420,390 19,714 43,584 43,651 527,339

Additions to leasehold land and buildings include donated land and buildings at Alder Grove Primary
School from Wokingham Borough Council at a value of £13,238,436 and for a lease term of 125 years from *
15 July 2020. Since a formal valuation of the assets is not yet available the Trustees have used the build
costs per square metre of a Similar school to arrive at a value to use in the accounts.

Transfers on conversion during the year ended 31 August 2021 - :

The academy. trust entered into a Supplemental Agreement with.Church land trustees for the use of land
and buildings at Polehampton CE Infant School and Polehampton CE Junior School. The academy trust
has permission to use the land and buildings for an indefinite period, subject to a 2 year termination notice

" period. The land and buildings have not been recognised as a fixed asset as the trustees conSIder that the

academy trust does not have sufficient control over the premises.
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14 Debtors
2021 2020
£ £
Trade debtors 5,793 222,691
VAT recoverable : : 111,495 61,842
Other debtors - 1,752
Prepayments and accrued income 529,877 188,628
647,165 474,913
15 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
2021 2020
£ £
Trade creditors 216,160 163,886
Other taxation and social security A A 121,393 83,597
Other creditors 162,227 107,468
Accruals and deferred income : : 583,423 398,581
1,073,203 753,532
16  Deferred income
2021 2020
Deferred income is included within:
Creditors due within one year ' ' 363,362 249,694
Deferred income at 1 September 2020 249,694 150,144
" Released from previous years ) ’ (249,694) (150,144)
Resources deferred in the year ’ 363,362 249,694
Deferred income at 31 August 2021 363,362 249,694

At the balance sheet date the academy trust was holding funding received specifically for the next financial
year totalling £326,800 (2020 £207 ,985), together with Iettlngs trips, activities and other income recelved
in advance totalling £36,562 (2020: £41,709).
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Funds

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG)
UIFSM

Pupil premium

Catch-up premium

‘Other DfE/ESFA COVID-19

funding

Other DfE / ESFA grants
Other government grants
Other restricted funds
Pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset funds .

Capital transferred on
conversion

DfE group capital grants
Fixed assets fund (note 13)
Capital donations

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted funds
General funds -

Total funds

Balance at Gains, Balance at
1 September losses and 31 August
2020 Income Expenditure transfers 2021

£ £ £ £ £

. 544 896 7,854,726 (7,586,635) 130,002 942,989
- 263,559 (263,559) - -

5,000 254,386 (259,386) - -

- 151,360 (120,100) - 31,260

- 21,100 (21,100) - ‘

57,911 582,397 (543,423) _ - 96,885
140,840 718,317 (810,870) (48,287) -

- 309,782 (309,782) - -
(3,572,000) (1,080,000) (719,000) (768,000) (6,139,000)
(2,823,353) 9,075,627 (10,633,855) (686,285) (5,067,866)
77,647 35,806 (23,875) 8,332 97,910
91,729 240,561 (190,384) - 141,906
527,339 - (273,685) 13,163,025 13,416,679
16,007 13,238,436 - (13,253,072) 1,371
712,722 13,514,803 (487,944) (81,715) 13,657,866
(2,110,631) 22,590,430 (11,121,799) (768,000) 8,590,000
680,174 514,541 - (453,895) - 740,820
(1,430,457) 23,104,971 (11,575,694) (768,000) 9,330,820
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Funds : : : - (Continued)

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

The General Annual Grant represents funding received from the Education and Skills Funding Agency
during the period in order to fund the continuing activities of the school. Under the funding agreement with
the Secretary of State, the academy trust was not subject to limits on the amount of GAG that it could carry
forward at 31 August 2020.

Pupil Premium Funding represents funding received from the Department for Education (DfE) to raise the
attainment of disadvantaged pupils of all abilities. The eligibility of the pupils and rates of grant per pupil are
set-out by the DfE. This funding is to be used for the provision of education.

Early Years Funding is provided by a local authority to facilitate provision of placements for 3 and 4 year
olds.

Other DfE funding represents other forms of funding received from the Department for Education. This
includes but is not limited to Rates Relief Income, UIFSM funding and PE and Sport Premium grant.

Local Authority Revenue funding represents various grant funding provided by Local Authorities.

The pension reserve fund separately identifies the pension deficit on the Local Government Pension
Scheme, and through which all the movements on the pension scheme are recognised.

Devolved Formula Capital represents funding provided by the Department for Education to be used for
capital projects. This funding may be used for specific capltal projects which are not con5|dered to be fixed
asset additions.

Local Authority Capital Funding includes various grant funding provided by Local Authorities.

Capital funds transferred on conversion constitute balances remaining on funds held by the academy trust
for capital purposes from the point of conversion.

Restricted Fixed Asset Funds, Other grants and donations represent amounts given to the academy trust
for specific capital purposes.

The Fixed Asset fund recognises the net book value of tangible and fixed assets transferred to the trust on
conversion and additions since conversion.

Unrestricted funds represent other income to the academy trust which is not received as funding or with a
specific purpose.

The-academy trust is not subject to GAG carried forward limits.
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17 Funds

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Balance at Gains, Balance at

- 1 September . losses and 31 August -
2019 Income Expenditure transfers 2020
£ £ £ £ £

Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG) 307,953 5,652,403 (5,426,093) 10,633 544,896
UIFSM - 192,376 (192,376) - -
Pupil premium 5,000 221,019 (221,019) - 5,000
Other DfE / ESFA grants 167,587 455,362 (555,038) - 57,911
Other government grants - 726,342 (585,502) - 140,840
Revenue transferred on
conversion - 78,586 (78,586) ) - -
Pension reserve (2,437,000) (600,000) (357,000) (178,000) (3,572,000)

(1,966,460) * 6,726,088 (7,415,614) (167,367) (2,823,353)
Restricted fixed asset funds
Capital transferred on
conversion 54,152 58,501 - (35,006) 77,647

. DfE group capital grants . 94,574 64,724 - (67,569) 91,729
Fixed asset funds (note 13) 456,341 - (29,792) 100,790 527,339
Capital donations 16,007 8,848 - (8,848) 16,007
621,074 132,073 (29,792) (10,633) 712,722

Total restricted funds - (1,345,386) 6,858,161 (7,445,406) (178,000) (2,110,631)
Unrestricted funds . : :
General funds 466,902 - - 567,569 (354,297) - 680,174
Total funds (878,484) 7,425,730 (7,799,703) (178,000) (1,430,457)
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Total funds analysis by academy

2021 2020
Fund balances at 31 August 2021 were allocated as follows: £ £
The Coombes CE School 496,553 356,377
Earley St Peter's CE School 498,808 450,027
St Sebastian's CE Primary School 169,924 81,160
Sonning CE Primary School 40,320 37,341
Crazies Hill CE Primary School : : 125,191 122,941
St Nicholas CE Primary School 58,447 54,873
Alder Grove CE Primary School 11,468 -
Polehampton CE Junior Schoo!l 97,389 -
Polehampton CE Infant School 64,451 -
Central services 259,403 326,102
Total before fixed assets fund and pension reserve 1,811,954 1,428,821
Restricted fixed asset fund - : - 13,657,866 712,722
Pension reserve (6,139,000) (3,572,000)

Total funds 9,330,820  (1,430,457)
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18

(Continued)

Funds
Total cost analysis by academy
Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:
Teaching and Other costs
educational Other support Educational excluding Total Total
support staff staff costs supplies depreciation 2021 2020
£ £ £ £ £ £
The Coombes CE School 1,290,977 135,580 189,356 285,880 1,901,793 1,774,724
Earley St Peter's CE '
School 1,737,802 197,587 121,895 405,897 2,463,181 2,191,279
St Sebastian's CE Primary
School 527,464 66,549 74,510 73,876 742,399 786,383
Sonning CE Primary
School 753,870 122,896 72,031 108,204 1,057,001 922,806
Crazies Hill CE Primary . .
School 409,010 53,092 38,193 70,863 571,158 542,895
St Nicholas CE Primary
School 533,233 58,672 46,581 90,229 728,715 692,349
Alder Grove CE Primary
School ) 250,413 93,645 23,765 98,802 466,625 -
Polehampton CE Junior ' ' )
School 760,448 128,077 69,754 174,993 1,133,272 -
Polehampton CE Infant
School 549,740 121,991 45,255 112,766 829,752 -
Central services 96,020 140,718 36,949 208,212 481,899 502,475
6,908,977 1,118,807 718,289 1,629,722 10,375,795 7,412,911
Depreciation 273,685 29,792
Loss on disposal of property 207,214 -
Other finance costs and pension costs 719,000 357,000
Total expenditure per Note 7 11,675,694 7,799,703
Analysis of net assets between funds
Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total
Funds - General Fixed asset: Funds
£ £ e £
Fund balances at 31 August 2021 are -
represented by: . .
Tangible fixed assets : - - 13,416,679 13,416,679 -
Current assets 765,339 2,119,818 241,187 - 3,126,344
Creditors falling due within one year (24,519)  (1,048,684) ‘ - (1,073,203)
Defined benefit pension liability ’ - (6,139,000) - (6,139,000)
‘Total net assets 740,820 (5,067,866) 13,657,866 9,330,820
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19

Analysis of net assets between funds : : (Continued)

Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total

Funds General Fixed asset Funds

£ £ £ £
Fund balances at 31 August- 2020 are : :

represented by:

Tangible fixed assets - - 527,339 527,339

Current assets 680,174 1,502,179 185,383 2,367,736
Creditors falling due within one year - (753,532) - (753,532)
Defined benefit pension liability : - (3,572,000) - (3,572,000)
Total net assets 680,174  (2,823,353) 712,722 (1,430,457)

Pension and similar obligations

The academy trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff, and the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by the Royal County of Berkshire. Both are multi-
employer defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016, and that of the LGPS
related to the period ended 31 March 2019.

Contributions amounting to £105,993 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2021 (2020: £56,936) and
are included within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers’ Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in academles All
teachers have the option to opt out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a
percentage of salary. These contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme
The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS

iin accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014

published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future

contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, -
design of -benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at
31 March 2016. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 5 March 2019. -
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- 19  Pension and similar obligations : : (Continued)

The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:

+ employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% employer
administration charge)

« total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective date of £218,100 million, and notional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million giving a
notional past service deficit of £22,000 million

+ the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current
SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPIl. The assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of
prices and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The
assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2023.

The employer's pension costs paid to the TPS in the period amounted to £653,827 (2020: £293,516).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The
academy trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution
scheme. The academy trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-
administered funds. The total contributions are as noted below. The agreed contribution rates for future
years are 21.6% for employers and 6.5% for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Sécretary of State for Educétion to a guarantee that, in the
event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013.

Total contributions made 2021 2020
. £ £

Employer's contributions 408,000 256,000
Employees’ contributions 4 : . 117,000 . 74,000
Total contributions ' ‘ : ' 525,000 - 330,000
Principal actuarial assumptions : o ’ - 2021 - 2020
. s : . : , % - oy

Rate of increase in salaries ’ ' -39 3.25
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation . : 29 2.25
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 1.65 1.6
Inflation assumption (CPI) 2.95 0.5
Commutation of pensions to lump sums ) 50 50
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The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates.
The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

2021 2020
Years Years
Retiring today
- Males 21.3 21.5
- Females 24.0 24.1
Retiring in 20 years : :
- Males 22.6 229
- Females ' ' 25.4 ‘ 255
Scheme liabilities would have been affected by changes in assumptions as follows:
2021 2020
£'000 £'000
Discount rate + 0.1% . . 9,324 . 5,437
Discount rate - 0.1% 9,815 5,723
Mortality assumption + 1 year 9,949 5,784
Mortality assumption - 1 year 9,198 5,379
Defined benefit pension scheme net liability 2021 2020
£ £
Scheme assets - ‘ ‘ 3,427,000 2,006,000
Scheme obligations (9,566,000) (5,578,000)
Net liability (6,139,000) (3,572,000)
The academy trust’s share of the assets in the scheme 2021 2020
Fair value Fair value
£ £
Equities 2,092,000 1,172,000
Other bonds - oo C 610,000 263,000
Target return portfolio : : ’ 149,000 61,000
Longevity insurance . . (193,000) (119,000)
Property . . . 404,000 . 285,000
Other assets : - :  ' : 365,000 344,000

Total market value of assets ' 3,427,000 2,006,000

The actual return on scheme assets was £344,000 (2020: £(144,000)).
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Amount recognised in the statement of financial activities

Current service cost
Interest cost
Administration expenses

Total operating charge
Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations

At 1 September 2020
Obligations acquired on conversion
Current service cost

Interest cost '

Employee contributions

Actuarial loss/(gain)

Benefits paid

At 31 August 2021

Changes in the fair value of the academy trust's share of scheme assets

At 1 September 2020

Assets acquired on conversion
Interest income

Actuarial (gain)/loss

Employer contributions
Employee contributions
Benefits paid

Administration expenses

At 31 August 2021

{Continued)
2021 2020
£ £
648,000 348,000
71,000 9,000
2,000 1,000
721,000 358,000
2021 2020
£ £
5,578,000 3,996,000
1,693,000 945,000
1,054,000 603,000
117,000 " 94,000
117,000 74,000
1,066,000 (51,000)
(59,000) (83,000)
9,566,000 5,578,000
2021 2020
B £
2,006,000 1,559,000
613,000 345,000
46,000 85,000
298,000 (229,000)
408,000 256,000
117,000 74,000
(59,000) (83,000)
(2,000) (1,000)
3,427,000

2,006,000
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20 Reconciliation of net income/(expenditure) to net cash flow from operating activities

2021 2020
£ £
Net income/(expenditure) for the reporting penod (as per the statement of
financial activities) - . 11,629,277 (373,973)
Adjusted for:
Net deficit on conversion to academy 864,908 327,387
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income (13,478,997) (73,572)
Investment income receivable : (992) (1,181)
Defined benefit pension costs less contributions payable 648,000 348,000
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost 71,000 9,000
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 273,685 29,792
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 207,214 -
Decrease/(increase) in debtors 14,686 (224,846)
Increase in creditors 319,671 331,439
Net cash provided by operating activities ' 448,452 372,046
21 Analysis of changes in net funds
) 1 September Cash flows 31 August
2020 4 2021
£ £ £
Cash 1,892,823 586,356 2,479,179

22 Long-term commitments, including operating leases

At 31 August 2021 the total of the academy trust's future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases was:

2021 2020

£ £

Amounts due within one year 12,362 4,193
Amounts due in two and five years 30,781 1,124
43,143 . 5,317
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24

Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the academy trust and the composition of the board of trustees being drawn from
local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the
trustees have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with
the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all transactions
made on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval when required, and with the academy trust's
financial regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and related party
transactions.

Expenditure related party transactions

In 2019/20 N Reddie (wife of G Reddie, Trustee) received remuneration during the year, for her work as a
teaching assistant at Earley St Peters, of £10,961. G Reddie is no longer a trustee and so no disclosure of
N Reddie's remuneration is required for 2020/21.

N Reddie's appointment was made in open competition and G Reddie was not involved in the decision-
making process regarding appointment. N Reddie was paid within the normal pay scale for her role and
received no special treatment as a result of her relationship to a trustee.

In 2019/20 E Wooller (daugﬁter of H Wooller, CEO, Headteacher of Earley St Peter's and Trustee) received
remuneration during the year, for her work as playworker, of £576 (2019: £1,025). She received no
remuneration during 2020/21.

E Wooller's appointment was made in open competition and H Wooller was not involved in the decision-
making process regarding appointment. E Wooller was_paid within the normal pay scale for her role and
received no special treatment as a result of her relationship to the CEO.

In 2019/20 M Peters (son of J Peters, a member and Trustee) received remuneration of £414 during the
year for his work as a casual playworker. He received no remuneration during 2020/21.

M Peters' appointment was made in open competition and J Peters was not involved in the decision-
making process regarding appointment. M Peters was paid within the normal pay scale for his role and

received no special treatment as a result of his relationship to a trustee.

Connected charity transactions
The Oxford Diocesan Board of Education (ODBE) is a member of The Keys Academy Trust. During the
year ended 31 August 2021, the Trust paid £9,535 (2020: £10,222) for support services from ODBE.

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company. undertakes to contribute. to the assets of the company in the
event of it being wound up while he or she is a member, or within one year after he or she ceases to be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceedlng £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before
he or she ceases to be a member
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25 -Conversion to an academy

Academy
Polehampton CE Junior School
Polehampton CE Infant School

Net assets transferred:

Cash
Pension scheme deficit

Funds surplus/(deficit) transferred:

Fixed assets funds
LA budget funds
LGPS pension funds

Location Date of conversion
Twyford: 1 September 2020
Twyford 1 September 2020
Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total
funds General Fixed asset 2021
£ £ £ £
17,173 162,113 35,806 215,092
- (1,080,000) - (1,080,000)
17,173 (917,887) 35,806 (864,908)
Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total
funds General Fixed asset 2021
£ £ £ £
- - 35,806 - 35,806
17,173 162,113 - 179,286
- (1,080,000) - (1,080,000)
17,173 (9"17,887) 35,806 (864,908)

On 1 September 2020 Polehampton Infant and Junior Schools (Local Authority maintained schools)’
converted to academy trust status under the Academies Act 2010 and all the operations and assets and
liabilities were transferred to The Keys Academy Trust from Wokingham Borough Council for £nil

consideration.

The transfer has been accounted for as a combination that is in substance a gift. The assets and liabilities
transferred were valued at their fair values and recognised in the balance sheet under the appropriate
headings with a corresponding net amount recognised as a net gain in the Statement of Financial Activities
as "Donations — transfer from local authority on conversion."

The table above sets out the fair values of the identifiable assets and llabllltles transferred and an analy5|s<
of their recognition in the statement of financial activities. :
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